
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Please ask for: Helen Wright, Democratic Support Officer  
T: 01752 304022 E: helen.wright@plymouth.gov.uk 

LICENSING COMMITTEE (HACKNEY CARRIAGE) 
 
Date:    Thursday 17 November 2011 
Time:   10am 
Venue: Council House (next to the Civic Centre) 
 
Members: 
Councillor Reynolds, Chair 
Councillor Delbridge, Vice Chair 
Councillors Bowie, Churchill, Haydon, Mrs Nicholson and Rennie. 
 
Members are invited to attend the above meeting to consider the items of business overleaf. 
 
Members and officers are requested to sign the attendance list at the meeting. 
 
Please note that unless the chair of the meeting agrees, mobile phones should be switched off 
and speech, video and photographic equipment should not be used in meetings. 
 
 
Barry Keel 
Chief Executive 

 

 

 Barry Keel 
Chief Executive 
 
Plymouth City Council 
Civic Centre 
Plymouth  PL1 2AA 
 
www.plymouth.gov.uk/democracy 
 
Date: 8-11-2011 

Public Document Pack



 
LICENSING COMMITTEE (HACKNEY CARRIAGE) 
 
 

AGENDA 
 
PART I – PUBLIC MEETING 
  
1. APOLOGIES    
  
 To receive apologies for non-attendance submitted by Committee Members. 
  
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST    
  
 Members will be asked to make any declarations of interest in respect of items on this 

Agenda.  
  
3. CHAIR'S URGENT BUSINESS    
  
 To receive reports on business which, in the opinion of the Chair, should be brought 

forward for urgent consideration. 
  
4. PROPOSAL FOR A HACKNEY CARRIAGE TARIFF 

INCREASE   
(Pages 1 - 6) 

  
 The Director for Community Services will submit a report on the proposal for a hackney 

carriage tariff increase. 
  
5. EXEMPT INFORMATION    
  
 To consider passing a resolution under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 

1972 to exclude the press and public from the meeting for the following item(s) of 
business on the grounds that it (they) involve(s) the likely disclosure of exempt 
information as defined in paragraph(s) of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act, as amended 
by the Freedom of Information Act 2000. 

  
PART II (PRIVATE MEETING) 
 
AGENDA 
 
MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC TO NOTE 
that under the law, the Panel is entitled to consider certain items in private.  Members of the 
public will be asked to leave the meeting when such items are discussed.  
 
NIL.  
  
 
 
 



 

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

CITY OF PLYMOUTH 
  
Subject: Proposal for a Hackney Carriage Tariff Increase 
     
Committee:   Licensing Committee (Hackney Carriage) 
 
Date:   17 November 2011 
 

Cabinet Member: Councillor Jordan 

 

CMT Member:  Director for Community Services 

 

Author:   Andy Netherton – Safety, Health and Licensing Manager 
  

Contact:   Tel: 01752 304742 
   e-mail: andy.netherton@plymouth.gov.uk 

Ref:   ERS/LIC/AN/hct2  

Part:   I      
 
Executive Summary: 
 
There have been negotiations between officers and members of the Plymouth Licensed Taxi Association (PLTA) 
concerning proposals put forward by the PLTA for an increase in the hackney carriage tariff. The Committee 
agreed a proposed new tariff table on the 2 September 2011, which was then advertised through a public notice, 
in accordance with the Plymouth City Council Act 1975. 
 
This report outlines the objections received to the proposed changes to the tariff. After considering these 
objections Members can set a further date for implementation of the Tariff, either with or without modification.           
Corporate Plan 2011-2014: 
  
This report links to the delivery of the corporate improvement priorities, in particular: 

• Delivering sustainable growth – The hackney carriage trade employ a significant number of people and 
support local businesses through their activity. Hackney carriages form part of the successful public 
transport system and visitor experience. 

• Providing more and better culture and leisure activities – Visitors views of the City may be influenced by 
a well presented vehicle or driver. These vehicles form as essential part of the public transport system. 
          

Implications for Medium Term Financial Plan and Resource Implications:     
Including finance, human, IT and land 
 
The costs of advertising and implementing the proposed increase, will met from the hackney carriage trade 
account. 
Additional costs of printing and signage at the taxi ranks will also be met from the hackney carriage trade 
account 
 
   

Agenda Item 4Page 1



 
 
 
Other Implications: e.g. Community Safety, Health and Safety, Risk Management and Equality, 
Diversity and Community Cohesion: 
 
Any increase in the hackney carriage tariff, may have an impact on the lowest income group using hackney 
carriage services, but this should be considered against the need for a hackney carriage proprietor or driver to 
be able to earn a living wage and allow for investment in replacement vehicles from the provision of those 
services. 
 
  
Recommendations and Reasons for recommended action: 
 
It is recommended that Members consider the information contained in this report and 

1. Decide whether any modifications should be made to the table of Fares contained in Appendix 1 after 
consideration of the objections. 

2. Authorise that the table of fares, with any amendments, come into force on the 1st December 2011 or a 
date to be determined by the Committee, but no later than the 3 January 2012. 

 
The commencement date should be as early as reasonably practicable to allow the new fare table to be 
implemented by drivers. This period will allow officers time to notify the trade of the change and arrange for the 
printing of the new tariff 
 
Alternative options considered and reasons for recommended action: 
 
Not to approve a fare increase – There has been no tariff increase, except a 10p fuel surcharge, since 2008. 
Given the increase in the cost of living an increase at this time is reasonable. 
 
Amend the tariff to remove all or some of the extras – 3 objections were received but the extras are supported 
by the PLTA which represents a significant number of drivers and proprietors. 
 
Increase more than requested – The trade must balance any increase with any negative affect on taxi usage by 
the public. Additionally any increase will affect low income earners as they form a significant user of taxis.                   
  
Background papers:   
 
Licensing Committee (Hackney Carriage) – 2nd September 2011. Item 58 
 
Sign off:   
 
 
Fin  Leg AG/13173/ 

31.10.11 
HR  Corp 

Prop 
 IT  Strat 

Proc 
 

Originating SMT Member 

Page 2



 
 
 
Report 

 
1. The Hackney Carriage tariff of fares are fixed and from time to time amended by this Authority.  This has 

no effect on private hire charging which is not set by the Council.  
 
2. The power to enable the Council to fix the rates of fares for the hire of Hackney Carriages within the City 

is provided for in section 23(1) of the Plymouth City Council Act 1975. The remainder of Section 23 of the 
Plymouth City Council Act is concerned with the advertising and bringing into effect the table of fares after 
the period permitted for the receipt of objections. If objections are received and not withdrawn, Members 
after considering those objections, can set a further date for implementation of the Tariff, either with or 
without modification.  This date must be no later than 2 months after the date of closure of consultation 
specified in the advertised public notice. 

 
3. At a Committee meeting on the 2 September 2011 a draft table of fares was approved for advertising 

through a public notice. This is contained in Appendix 1. In response to the public notice dated the 3 
October 2011 three objections were received. The objections are contained within Appendix 2. 

 
4. The objections questioned the need for a fare increase and the implications on their ability to compete with 

private hire companies. One objection also questioned the need for extras and the likelihood of the mis-use 
of extras leading to overcharging. 

 
5. The tariffs, including extras, set by the Council are the maximum fares that can be charged. Drivers are able 

to request lower amounts and negotiate fares for travel outside of the City boundaries. Extras can be 
added at the discretion of the driver and are therefore subject to potential mis-use. Officers, however, very 
rarely receive complaints regarding the use of extras. The tariff table has to be displayed within all hackney 
carriage vehicles to allow passengers to calculate the approximate cost of their journey. 

 
6. The tariff table should be set to enable:  

 
• Sustainable income for drivers 
• Future investment in vehicles 
• Clearly set rates that minimise the opportunity for over charging or confusion 

 
Recommendations 
 
It is recommended that Members consider the information contained in this report and 
 

1. Decide whether any modifications should be made to the table of Fares contained in Appendix 1 after 
consideration of the objections. 

 
2. Authorise that the table of fares, with any amendments, come into force on the 1 December 2011 or a 

date to be determined by the Committee, but no later than the 3 January 2012.   
  

The commencement date should be as early as reasonably practicable to allow the new fare table to be 
implemented by drivers. This period will allow officers time to notify the trade of the change and arrange for the 
printing of the new tariff 
 

Page 3



 
 
 

APPENDIX 1 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 4



 
 
 

APPENDIX 2 
 
 
Objection 
Number 

Comment 

1 As a Plymouth Licensed Hackney Carriage Driver myself I strongly disagree with the proposed 
increases.  We are losing trade to private hire companies as we are too expensive already 
WITHOUT further increases. 

Furthermore all extras should be abolished as far too many drivers abuse this and overcharge 
people greatly and as a matter of course.   

 Please reconsider these increases as it will greatly affect those of us who are out there trying to 
earn a honest living without necessary overcharging. 

2 I personally don't think we should be increasing fares in the current financial climate, although I can 
understand why other members of the trade want it. 

What I object to is the EXTRA 50 pence from midnight. I have been told this is to encourage 
drivers to stay out after 12. I feel this will do more harm than good. Drivers will only stay out if it 
is busy. All that will happen is we will lose out to private hire. 

3 Just a small line to let you know, I am not in favour of a hike in price after midnight especially in a 
recession hit time period . The best way would be to have a small increase in just the running 
mileage , therefore longer distance increased price subtly . 

 
 
 

Page 5



Page 6

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 PROPOSAL FOR A HACKNEY CARRIAGE TARIFF INCREASE

